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September 17, 2008
IA-08-025

Mr. Charles A. Leet
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790(a)]

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION
(NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT NO. 4-2008-012)

Dear Mr. Leet:

This refers to an investigation conducted by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's (NRC) Office
of Investigations (Ol) into your activities associated with Alaska Rim Engineering, Inc.’s, (Alaska
Rim) possession of a portable nuclear gauge without authorization by the NRC. The purpose of
the investigation was, in part, to determine whether you engaged in deliberate misconduct by
possessing radioactive material without an NRC license. This was discussed with you during a
preliminary exit briefing conducted on June 20, 2008, and during a final telephonic exit briefing
conducted on August 27, 2008.

During the June 20 exit briefing, my staff informed you that the NRC was considering escalated
enforcement against you for an apparent violation involving deliberate misconduct, and that
before making a final enforcement decision we wanted to discuss this with you during a
predecisional enforcement conference. My staff also explained that you had an option for
Alternative Dispute Resolution. You informed my staff that you planned to transfer the portable
nuclear density gauge to an authorized recipient and that you planned to request termination of
your license. You also did not believe further discussions at a predecisional enforcement
conference or through Alternative Dispute Resolution were necessary.

By letter dated July 21, 2008, Alaska Rim informed us that it had transferred its only gauge to an
authorized recipient and submitted a request to terminate its license. My staff confirmed that
Alaska Rim had transferred its gauge, and terminated Alaska Rim’s license.

Because you did not desire further discussions of the apparent violation, the NRC is providing
its conclusions in this letter. Based on the information developed during the investigation, the
NRC has determined that a violation of the NRC'’s rule prohibiting deliberate misconduct,

10 CFR 30.10, occurred. The violation is cited in the enclosed Notice of Violation (Notice)
(Enclosure 1). The violation involves two instances of deliberate misconduct. In the first
instance, the NRC has concluded that you allowed Alaska Rim to possess and use a portable
nuclear gauge without an NRC license even though you were aware that a license was needed.
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You started to draft a license application in May 2003 when you purchased and possessed the
gauge, but it was not completed until March 2007. The second instance is that you deliberately
provided information that was not complete or accurate in the license application when you, as
the certifying official, stated that Alaska Rim was “planning to purchase, and would be licensing,
one Troxler 3409B portable moisture density gauge.” This was inaccurate because you had
already purchased, possessed, used and been storing the gauge since May 2003.

Your deliberate actions placed your employer, Alaska Rim Engineering, Inc., in violation of

10 CFR 30.3(a) and 10 CFR 30.9, and you placed yourself in violation of 10 CFR 30.10,
“Deliberate Misconduct.” Enclosure 3 includes a copy of the letter and Notice of Violation
issued to Alaska Rim Engineering, Inc. Given the significance of the underlying issue and the
deliberate nature of your actions, this violation has been categorized in accordance with the
NRC Enforcement Policy at Severity Level lll. The NRC Enforcement Policy may be found on
the NRC’s Web site at www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/regulatory/enforcement/enforce-pol.html.

You are not required to respond to this letter. The NRC has concluded that information
regarding the reason for the violations, the corrective actions taken to correct the violation and
prevent recurrence, and the date when full compliance was achieved, is already adequately
addressed on the docket in Inspection Report No. 030-37429/2007001 and in this letter.
However, you are required to submit a written statement or explanation pursuant to

10 CFR 2.201 if the description therein does not accurately reflect your corrective actions or
your position. In that case, or if you choose to respond, clearly mark your response as a "Reply
to a Notice of Violation," IA 08-025, and "Open by Addressee Only”, and send it to the U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington, DC 20555-0001
with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region 1V, 612 East Lamar Blvd., Suite 400,
Arlington, TX 76011-4125 within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of
Violation (Notice). Should you have any questions about this letter, please contact Mr. Mark
Haire, Senior Enforcement Specialist, at 817-860-8121.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosures, and your response, if you choose to provide one, will be made available
electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s
document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web site at www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/pdr.html and www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html respectively. To the extent possible, your
response, if you choose to provide one, should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or
safeguards information so that it can be made available to the public without redaction. The
NRC also includes significant enforcement actions on its Web site at www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/doc-collections/enforcement/actions/.
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In addition, this letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act
system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system
notice, which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from
the NRC Web site at www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Sincerely,
/RA CACasto for/

Elmo E. Collins
Regional Administrator

Docket No. 030-37429
License No. 50-29256-01

Enclosures:

1. Notice of Violation

2. Inspection Report 030-37429/2007-01
and Notice of Violation issued to Alaska
Rim Engineering, Inc.

cc w/enclosures 1-2:
Alaska Radiation Control Program Director
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Mr. Charles A. Leet I1A-08-025
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.790(a)]

During an NRC inspection and investigation conducted on September 18, 2007- August 27, 2008,
a violation of NRC requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy,
the violations are listed below:

10 CFR 30.10 requires, in part, that any licensee, applicant for a license, or employee of a
licensee may not: (1) engage in deliberate misconduct that causes a licensee to be in
violation of any NRC regulation; and (2) deliberately submit to the NRC information that the
person submitting the information knows to be incomplete or inaccurate in some respect
material to the NRC.

Contrary to the above, from May 17, 2003, until March 6, 2007, Mr. Charles A. Leet
deliberately caused his employer, Alaska Rim Engineering, Inc., (Alaska Rim), to be in
violation of NRC regulations and deliberately submitted materially inaccurate information to
the NRC. Specifically, Mr. Leet, on behalf of Alaska Rim, purchased, received, possessed,
and used a portable gauge device containing cesium-137 and americium-241 without an
NRC license. In addition, on May 6, 2007, Mr. Leet submitted a license application to the
NRC stating that Alaska Rim was planning to purchase the portable gauge when, in fact,
Alaska Rim had already purchased the gauge in May 2003 and used it without an NRC
license. This information is material because it concealed the fact that Alaska Rim had been
in violation of 10 CFR 30.3(a) for a four year period prior to the application, and this
information could have impacted the NRC’s decision to issue a license to Alaska Rim.

This is a Severity Level Ill violation (Supplement VI and VII).

The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violation, the corrective
actions taken to correct the violation and prevent recurrence, and the date when full compliance
was achieved, is already adequately addressed on the docket in Inspection Report

No. 030-37429/2007001, and in your letter dated July 21, 2008. However, you are required to
submit a written statement or explanation pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201 if the description therein
does not accurately reflect your corrective actions or your position. In that case, or if you
choose to respond, clearly mark your response as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation, IA-08-025,”
and send it to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk,
Washington, DC 20555-0001 with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region IV, within 30
days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of Violation (Notice).

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001.

If you choose to respond, your response will be made available electronically for public
inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS),
accessible from the NRC Web site at www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/pdr.html or
www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html, to the extent possible, it should not include any personal
privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made available to the public
without redaction. If personal privacy or proprietary information is necessary to provide an
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acceptable response, then please provide a bracketed copy of your response that identifies the
information that should be protected and a redacted copy of your response that deletes such
information. If you request withholding of such material, you must specifically identify the
portions of your response that you seek to have withheld and provide in detail the bases for your
claim of withholding (e.g., explain why the disclosure of information will create an unwarranted
invasion of personal privacy or provide the information required by 10 CFR 2.390(b) to support a
request for withholding confidential commercial or financial information).

This letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of
records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system notice, which
provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from the NRC Web
site at www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.htmi .

Dated this 17" day of September 2008

Enclosure 1
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